
 

 

GATESHEAD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD AGENDA 

 
Friday, 9 June 2023 at 10.00 am in the Whickham Room - Civic Centre 
 
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 
Item 
 

Business 
  

1   Apologies for Absence  
  

2   Minutes (Pages 3 - 12) 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2023 are attached for approval 
together with the Action List. 
  

3   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members of the Board to declare an interest in any particular agenda item. 
  

4   Updates from Board Members  
  

 Items for Discussion  
  

5   Gateshead Place Plan - Lynn Wilson and Kirsty Sprudd (Pages 13 - 42) 
  

6   Update on Learning Disability & Autism, and the Mental Health 
Transformation - Angela Kumar and Gail Balance (Pages 43 - 52) 
  

7   Prevent Update - Claire Wheatley (Pages 53 - 60) 
  

8   Assurance Sub-Group - Dale Owens  
  

9   Gateshead Cares System Board Update - Mark Dornan/All  
  

 Items for Assurance  
  

10   Gateshead Better Care Fund end of year return for 2022/23 - John Costello 
(Circulated separately)  
  

11   A.O.B.  
 

 
 

Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill, Tel: 0191 433 2149, 
Email: melvynmallam-churchill@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 433 3045 

Date: Thursday, 1 June 2023 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

GATESHEAD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING 
 

Friday, 21 April 2023 
 

 
PRESENT Councillor Lynn Caffrey  Gateshead Council (Chair) 
 Alice Wiseman Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Gary Haley Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Jane McCoid Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Jennifer Reay Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Leigh Kirton Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Martin Gannon Gateshead Council 
 Councillor Pamela Burns Gateshead Council 
 Dr Mark Dornan Newcastle Gateshead CCG 
 Lisa Goodwin Connected Voice 
 Steve Thomas T&W Fire and Rescue 
   
IN ATTENDANCE Dale Owens Gateshead Council 
 Ed O’Malley Gateshead Council 
 Helen Bell Gateshead Council 
 Helen Fergusson Gateshead Council 
 Helena Barron Northumbria Police 
 Joanna Clark Gateshead Health FT 
 Kirsty Sprudd NENC ICB Gateshead 
 Lynn Wilson NENC ICB Gateshead 
 Michael Lamb Gateshead Council 
 Natalie Goodman Gateshead Council 
 Nicola Allen CBC Health Federation 
 Peter Udall Gateshead Council 
 Sheena Ramsey Gateshead Council 
 Steve Kirk CBS Health Federation 
 Vicky Sibson Gateshead Council 
 Yvonne Probert Healthwatch Gateshead 

  
HW1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Claire Wheatley, Councillor Bernadette 

Oliphant, Councillor Michael McNestry and Lisa Goodwin. 
  

HW2 MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)            That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2023 be approved. 
(ii)           That the action list update be noted. 

 
 
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

HW3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)            That there were no declarations of interest. 

  
HW4 UPDATES FROM BOARD MEMBERS  

 
 Alice Wiseman provided the Board with an update on the Public Health Grant; Alice 

advised that whilst the grant received is in real terms a cut in previous funding, it was 
noted that the grant will be used to support treatment and recovery services for 
addictions. Alice also highlighted that the Health Equality Report had been 
published; this is available to view/read here: Health Equality Report 
  
Joanna Clark advised the Board that the housebound vaccinations programme is 
running until the end of June 2023. Joanna also advised that the joint Stroke Service 
with Newcastle had received its yearly audit and had received a grade B which is an 
improvement on the previous grade. The Board were also provided with an update 
on the urgent care centre at the QE. 
  
Lynn Wilson noted that the ICB Strategy Forward Plan is to launch on 9 May 2023; it 
was also agreed that the Gateshead Place Plan would be circulated to the Board. 
  
Dale Owens advised the Board that draft guides had been published by the CQC 
and that services are working towards an inspection in the next 12-18 months; the 
Board were further advised that the inspection regime will be live from 1st April 2023. 
The Board agreed to receive a further update on this in due course. 
  
Nicola Allen provided the Board with feedback following the Easter weekend; it was 
noted that services were especially busy over the weekend, particularly in 
urgent/emergency care.  
  
Mark Dornan gave an update on the impact of recent industrial action on waiting 
times and acknowledged public fatigue with regards to Covid vaccinations.  
  
Helen Fergusson advised the Board that the Gateshead Youth Justice Service had 
recently undergone an inspection from HMIP; it was suggested that a report on the 
outcome be presented to the Board in due course. Helen also highlighted that the 
SEND strategy consultation had ended in March 2023 and that the final strategy has 
been developed after a review of the feedback received. 
  
The Board also noted an update from Steve Kirk in relation to the new national 
contract for GP’s which will introduce new access targets for practises. The Board 
noted that the targets would be a challenge to meet for GP practises who remain 
under pressure and in demand. It was suggested that this matter be discussed at the 
upcoming System Board meeting. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board note the updates provided. 
  
  

Page 4

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.healthequitynorth.co.uk%2Fapp%2Fuploads%2F2023%2F04%2FHEN-REPORT.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CMelvynMallam-Churchill%40Gateshead.Gov.UK%7Cc261c0a969b34ee69daa08db4248e341%7C09fbb97943174d219cb6e58811169cd8%7C0%7C0%7C638176654258611187%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=nem88YAw%2FTGW5VFdHxdFBOgP6e7HfM7b426Cx4RTv40%3D&reserved=0


 

HW5 HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY: PROGRESS SUMMARY, DRAFT 
APPROACH AND PLAN FOR IMPLEMENTATION - LOUISE SWEENEY  
 

 The Board received a report and presentation providing an update on the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy Implementation Group; a draft of the Implementation Approach 
and Plan was also provided. 
  
From the presentation, the Board noted updates in relation to the need for action 
across policy objectives and the wider determinants of health through a cost-of-living 
crisis. Concern was noted that the cost of living is having a detrimental impact on 
health and consequently there will be more people living in poverty. 
  
An example objective map was presented; the Board acknowledged that there would 
be both ‘key’ and ‘targeted’ strategies coving each objective of the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy across the entire system. A summary of staff consultation 
responses for the development of the strategy was provided, it was reported that 
some staff did not understand what health inequalities were and were not aware of 
the information on the strategy. The Board were advised that following this process 
work began to identify areas of action and priorities, these included partnership 
working, communication and community engagement. 
  
The Board were advised that the next steps in the implementation of the strategy will 
include: 
  

•       Creating a digital home for this Implementation Approach and Plan 
•       Working with the Implementation group to: 

•       Capture and develop a deeper understanding of Governance 
Structures within Part 2 of the plan. This will also consider this work in 
the context of statutory duties. 

•       Development of processes for monitoring progress, learning and 
improvement 

•       Identify and establish leads and groups to take forward the implementation 
themes, starting with Health and Wellbeing in all Policies 

•       Implementation Group to focus on strategic areas at future meetings, to 
further develop this work and support system involvement and collaboration. 
Focus this spring/summer: 

•       Poverty, Economic Development, and Mental Health 
•       Housing, Neighbourhoods, and Community safety 

  
The recommendations of the report were: 
  

         The Health and Wellbeing Board agree to, and endorse, the plan and 
approach for implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

         The Health and Wellbeing Board agree to the approach and plan being a live 
and iterative document, shared and owned by partners, with ongoing review, 
annual reflection, and reporting on progress to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

         Health and Wellbeing Board members and partner organisations agree to 
ensure their plans and strategies clearly align to Thrive and the Health and 
Wellbeing strategy and support their staff to understand their role in delivering 

Page 5



 

them to provide a strong foundation for the implementation of the H&W 
Strategy. 

         Health and Wellbeing Board members and partner organisations commit staff 
time and capacity to enable prioritisation of the delivery of this plan going 
forward to ensure progress. 

         The Implementation group continues in its current form to enable continued 
progress, partnership, and collaboration on strategy implementation. 
Members of the Board are invited to consider whether further representation 
is required within the group. 

  
The Board discussed the recommendations of the report; a comment was made 
noting that the strategy could open opportunities for joint commissioning. A further 
comment was made nothing that the implementation group should focus on the 
practicalities of implementing the strategy to ensure that the aims are understood by 
staff. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the recommendations were agreed. 
   

HW6 FEEDBACK FROM PLANNING SESSION ON GATESHEAD HEALTH AND CARE 
SYSTEM  
 

 The Board received a report providing feedback and key messages from the Health 
& Wellbeing Board planning session held on 10 March 2023. Appended to the report 
was a full breakdown of each question considered at the session for information. 
  
Board members agreed that the session was worthwhile and a success. The Board 
also agreed that the session made a positive contribution to strengthening the 
“Gateshead voice” across the system and beyond. 
  
The Board discussed the matter of transparency and honestly in addressing the 
inequalities gap; the Board agreed that existing funding arrangements can 
perpetuate health inequalities and that there is a need to focus resources so that 
they can be targeted more equitably. The Board also noted that seeking the views of 
residents and service users when working towards service priorities was important. 
  
The Chair highlighted that 2023 marks the 10-year anniversary of Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and noted that the timing of the session was apt and reinforced 
the importance of Health and Wellbeing Boards in shaping how services are run for 
local people. 
  
The Board requested that a ‘systems map’ be developed to illustrate how services 
and organisations ‘fit in’ together across the Gateshead system. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board noted the report. 
  

HW7 PHYSICAL ACTIVITY STRATEGY - MICHAEL LAMB AND NATALIE GOODMAN  
 

 The Board received an update on the Physical Activity Strategy for Gateshead. 

Page 6



 

  
As part of the update, the Board noted current activities being undertaken, these are: 
  

•       Leisure Services review of facilities 
•       Community Physical Activity team 

o   Falls Prevention – Otago, Staying Steady 
o   Active through football 
o   Family hubs 
o   Sports / clubs development 

•       Active Travel and Social prescribing Pilot 
o   Walking and Cycling activities 
o   Active Travel infrastructure 
o   Public Health initiatives 
o   Healthy weight 
o   MECC 
o   Substance misuse 
o   Wellbeing promotion and social media 
o   BHAWA 

  
The Board were advised that the strategy had been approved by Cabinet and thusly 
adopted by the Council. The Board were also advised that feedback from the pilots 
outlined above would be reported back in the Autumn.  
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board noted the updated. 
(ii)           That the Board agreed to receive a further update report in Autumn. 

  
HW8 NOTIFICATION OF REMOVAL FROM THE PHARMACEUTICAL LIST & 

CHANGES TO PHARMACY OPENING HOURS - EDWARD O' MALLEY  
 

 The Board received a report providing notification of the closure of Lloyds Pharmacy 
Ltd inside Sainsburys, Eleventh Avenue, Team Valley Trading Estate, Gateshead, 
NE11 0NJ. 
  
The Board expressed concern again regarding the accessibility of pharmacy 
services outside normal hours, which remains largely unchanged since the previous 
PNA. The Board agreed to make the ICP North meeting aware of this concern. 
  
It was proposed that the out of hours and weekend provision be reviewed and added 
to the PNA 2022 as a supplementary statement; a suggestion was also made that 
Healthwatch be involved. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board approved a review of Pharmacy provision specifically in 
relation to out of hours and weekend hours. 

  
HW9 GATESHEAD CARES SYSTEM BOARD UPDATE - MARK DORNAN / ALL  

 
 The Board received a presentation providing an update from the Gateshead Cares 

Page 7



 

System Board. 
  
From the update, the Board received an update on progress against the programme 
areas as follows: 
  
Children & Young People / SEND: 

•       A Strategic overview of key SEND initiatives and the development of a SEND 
Strategy 

•       Current work of the SEND Board 
•       Details of the SEND Inspection Framework and its application 
•       The production of a final version of the ‘orange book’ for teenagers  

Mental Health Transformation: 
•       An overview of progress against priorities for 2022/23 and plans for 2023/24 

including the integration of teams at primary care level; development of the 
Older Adults Mental Health Pathway; procurement of MH rehabilitation offer 
for individuals with complex needs; a continued focus on reducing 
inequalities; and a focus on children and young people’s mental health 
pathways 

People@theheart (MCN): 
•       Overview of progress during 2022/23 (including the End of Phase 1 Report) 

and plans for 2023/24 including a reduction in frequent attenders at A&E and 
better outcomes for those most frequently using emergency services; 
improved attendance rates across all services in Gateshead; and further 
development of a Data Sharing Agreement  

  
It was also reported that workforce plans for 2023/24 include the development of a 
Gateshead Summer School to engage with Year 9+ students with an interest in 
health and care careers. It was highlighted that a Gateshead Place report is being 
developed which can include bespoke focus on local metrics for the 
Axym/Gateshead Outcomes Framework.  
  
The Board also received a summary of other issues considered, this included the 
The NHS Planning Round including work to develop a NENC Joint Forward Plan 
and Gateshead Place Plan, including the links to other plans at Gateshead Place 
level such as Gateshead’s Health & Wellbeing Strategy. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board noted the update provided. 
   

HW10 LLOYDS PHARMACY AT HARRAS BANK, BIRTLEY: CHANGE TO 
SUPPLEMENTARY HOURS  
 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)            That the Board noted this report for information. 

  
HW10a Bestway Pharmacy at Prince Consort Road: Change to Supplementary Hours  

 
 RESOLVED: 

(i)            That the Board noted this report for information. 
  

Page 8



 

  
HW11 BESTWAY PHARMACY AT BEACONSFIELD ROAD: CHANGE TO 

SUPPLEMENTARY HOURS  
 

 RESOLVED: 
(i)            That the Board noted this report for information. 

   
HW12 A.O.B.  

 
 There was no other business. 

 
 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Item 2.2 
 

GATESHEAD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
ACTION LIST  

 
 

AGENDA ITEM ACTION BY WHOM COMPLETE 
or STATUS 

 
Matters Arising from HWB meeting on 21st April 2023 

 
Partner Updates To circulate a draft of 

the Gateshead Place 
Plan. Partners to 
provide any 
feedback/comments 
to Lynn Wilson 

Melvyn Mallam-
Churchill on behalf 
of Lynn Wilson 

Circulated 
 
The Gateshead 
Place Plan is on 
the agenda of the 
June Board 
meeting 

Physical Activity 
Strategy 

To receive a further 
update report in 
Autumn 

Michael Lamb / 
Natalie Goodman 

To feed into 
Forward Plan 

Notification of 
Removal from the 
Pharmaceutical List 
and Changes to 
Pharmacy Opening 
Hours 
 

To review Pharmacy 
provision specifically 
in relation to out of 
hours and weekend 
hours 

Alison Wiseman / 
Edward O’Malley 

To feed into 
Forward Plan 

 
Matters Arising from HWB meeting on 27th January 2023 

 
Family Hubs To receive a further 

update on plans at a 
future meeting 

Gavin Bradshaw To feed into 
Forward Plan 

 
Matters Arising from HWB meeting on 21st October 2022 

 
Partner Updates To receive an update 

on Northumbria 
Police Prevent 
Strategy at a future 
meeting 

Claire Wheatley  On the agenda of 
the June Board 
meeting 

Delayed Discharges 
Harm Assessment 

To receive a progress 
report on delayed 
discharges in 2023 
 
 

Jo Baxter / D 
Owens 

To feed into 
Forward Plan 

Page 11



2 
 

AGENDA ITEM ACTION BY WHOM COMPLETE 
or STATUS 

 
Matters Arising from HWB meeting on 29th April 2022 

 
Climate Change 
Strategy for 
Gateshead 
 

To receive an update 
on progress in taking 
forward the Climate 
Change Strategy 

A Hutchinson / L 
Greenfield 

To feed into 
Forward Plan  

 

Page 12



 1 

 
 

 

GATESHEAD HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 

9 June 2023 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT: North East North Cumbria Integrated Care Board (NENC 

ICB) - Gateshead Place Plan 
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
1. To report on final version of the NENC ICB Gateshead Plan  

 
Background 
2. The ICB is required to publish a forward plan for NENC which clearly outlines the 

direction of travel over the next 5 years to fulfil the aims and objectives of the 
NENC Integrated Care Strategy and wider NHS ambitions and planning 
requirements. 

2.1 As part of the forward plan each 'place' has produced a plan; this will be 
consolidated into the overall plan alongside ICB wide thematic plans. 

2.2 Although this is an ICB plan and there is specific 'must do's' that relate to the NHS 
wider ambitions and trajectories it is important to reflect ambitions at place; the plan 
is closely aligned to the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and Gateshead Cares 
priorities as well as fulfilling the 4 objectives set out in the NENC Integrated Care 
Strategy: 

• Giving Children & Young People the Best Start in Life 
• Better Health & Care Services 
• Fairer Outcomes for All 
• Longer & Healthier Lives 

2.3 Partner organisations including Gateshead Council has had an opportunity to feed 
in and comment on the plan which is represented in the final version. 

2.4 It should be noted that the format of the Gateshead Plan has changed from a 
previous iteration due to an updated template being produced. 

2.5 NENC ICB will write out to partners on 14 June 2023 with the full plan and a further 
opportunity to comment. 

2.6 The ICB wide plan is timetabled on the ICB Board on 27 June 2023. 
2.7 Although the full plan is being presented to the NENC ICB Board on 27 June 2023 

it will be kept open for comments until end August 2023; further comments will be 
fed into the next iteration of the plan which will be updated in Spring 2024. 

 
Proposal 
3. It is proposed that the Health & Wellbeing Board consider the contents of the 

NENC ICB Gateshead Plan 
 
Recommendations 
4. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to agree the attached NENC ICB 

Gateshead Place Plan as a final version for 2023/24 and note the opportunity to 
make further comment on the full plan once it is published on 14 June 2023. 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Contact: Dr Lynn Wilson email: lynnwilson@gateshead.gov.uk / lynn.wilson@nhs.net  
Enc.  NENC ICB Gateshead Place Plan 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:lynnwilson@gateshead.gov.uk
mailto:lynn.wilson@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Programme/Workstream plan: 
 

Gateshead Place 

Submitted by: [Name, Job Title] 
 

Lynn Wilson, Director of Place for Gateshead 

Date: 
 

26 May 2023 

Summary:  
 
Gateshead boasts some of the best health and care services, but stubborn health inequalities persist across our communities. We know that over half of 
people and families in Gateshead are either just managing or just coping, but more than 30% are in need or in vulnerable situations. 
 
In Gateshead we know that:   

• It is 73rd most deprived area out of the 326 local authorities in England. 
• More than 23,600 people live in a neighbourhood with deep levels of deprivation. 
• People of Gateshead are more likely to experience poor health outcomes compared to people living in the South of England. 
• Gateshead residents are more likely to die sooner and experience more illness or disability than people living in the South of England. 
• People feel the burden caused by austerity and welfare reforms which have been greater in the North than the South of England - exacerbating 

further the difference in health outcomes 
 
The overarching strategy for Gateshead Place is our Health and Wellbeing Strategy 'Good jobs, homes, health and friends'1 which sets out where we 
need to focus our attention to reduce levels of inequality through altering the circumstances that lead to inequality. We want to make Gateshead a place 
where fewer people need direct support and more people are thriving2.  

 
1 https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31529/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy-
2020/pdf/Health_and_wellbeing_strategy_2020.pdf?m=637792329182930000#:~:text=Our%20vision%20for%20health%20and,commits%20us%20to%20these%20pledges.&text=We%20want%20Gateshead%20to
%20be%20a%20place%20where%20everyone%20thrives. m 
2 https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/11956/Thrive-our-strategic-approach  

P
age 15

https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31529/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2020/pdf/Health_and_wellbeing_strategy_2020.pdf?m=637792329182930000#:~:text=Our%20vision%20for%20health%20and,commits%20us%20to%20these%20pledges.&text=We%20want%20Gateshead%20to%20be%20a%20place%20where%20everyone%20thrives
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31529/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2020/pdf/Health_and_wellbeing_strategy_2020.pdf?m=637792329182930000#:~:text=Our%20vision%20for%20health%20and,commits%20us%20to%20these%20pledges.&text=We%20want%20Gateshead%20to%20be%20a%20place%20where%20everyone%20thrives
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/media/31529/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2020/pdf/Health_and_wellbeing_strategy_2020.pdf?m=637792329182930000#:~:text=Our%20vision%20for%20health%20and,commits%20us%20to%20these%20pledges.&text=We%20want%20Gateshead%20to%20be%20a%20place%20where%20everyone%20thrives
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/11956/Thrive-our-strategic-approach


2 
 

 
The six policy objectives of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy are: 
 

• give every child the best start in life 
• enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities and have control over their lives 
• create fair employment and good work for all 
• ensure a healthy standard of living for all 
• create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities 
• strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention 

 
Gateshead Cares (Gateshead Health and Care System) provides the opportunity to strategically plan and commission for better outcomes based upon 
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Health and Wellbeing Strategy using the mature relationships and trust that are evident to plan together and 
deliver together as a whole system.  A formal alliance agreement is in place for Gateshead Cares which has the fundamental aim of joint working and 
integration to: 
 

• reduce levels of inequality through tackling the circumstances that lead to inequality 
• shift the balance of services from acute hospital care and crisis interventions to community support with a focus on prevention, early help and self-

help, matched by appropriate resource levels 
• support the development of integrated care and treatment for people 
• create a joint planning and financial framework for managing the difficult decisions required to ensure effective, efficient and economically secure 

services, getting the most from the Gateshead Pound. 
 

The objectives of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Gateshead Cares are closely aligned to the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan.  This 
Gateshead Plan and will seek to deliver against the NHS LTP national metrics as well as fulfil the 4 objectives set out in the NENC Integrated Care 
Strategy: 
 

1. Giving Children and Young People the best start in life 
2. Better Health and care services 
3. Fairer Outcomes for all 
4. Longer Healthier Lives 

 
It is these headings which form the basis of our plan. 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 16



3 
 

Partnership working – please describe how partners have been engaged in developing the plan, the partnership working 
structure and where applicable the current governance, and how this might further mature or strengthen, e.g.ICS work streams or 
place-based committees. 
 
 
Partners have been engaged through Gateshead Cares; an alliance of local statutory health and social care organisations with the aim of achieving better 
outcomes for local people through shared priorities and more integrated working. 
 
In support of this plan the Health and Wellbeing Board hosted a session on 10 March 2022 to review current priorities for Gateshead Cares, within the 
context of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and NENC Integrated Care Strategy.  The learning from this session has been used to inform the plan. 
 
Partners and wider stakeholders have also had opportunity to feed in their views through a variety of mechanisms which include: 
 

• Presentation at Health & Wellbeing Board, and directorate leadership and management meetings in Social Care, Housing, Locality Team and 
Commissioning 

• Online workshop 
• Gateshead Cares System Board 
• Integrated Commissioning Meeting 
• Joint Committee at Place 

 
The Governance for Gateshead Cares is delivered via an Alliance Agreement; however, in line with the government's Integration White Paper 'Joining-Up 
Care for People, Places and Populations'3 which sets out further expectations for place-based working by 2023, the governance arrangements between 
Integrated Care Boards and Places will be strengthened. 
 
A Joint Committee at Place has been established in Gateshead in accordance with ICB governance arrangements; this has been in operation since 1 April 
2023 with the ambition of becoming a Joint Committee in the future. This is a shared ambition with Gateshead Cares and the Health & Wellbeing Board 
representing the next step towards health and care integration.  Further work is needed across the Gateshead System to understand the implications for 
individual partner organisations, in particular for ICB Place and the local authority, in reaching a decision on this issue and ensuring readiness to move to 
the next step. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-social-care-integration-joining-up-care-for-people-places-and-populations  

P
age 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-social-care-integration-joining-up-care-for-people-places-and-populations


4 
 

Key stakeholders  - please list the groups/types of stakeholders that are important in jointly developing and delivering the plan. 
 
Gateshead Health & Wellbeing Board GP Practices 
Gateshead Health Foundation Trust LMC 
CNTW GP Federation 
SSTFT Healthwatch 
VCSE Providers  
Gateshead Childrens & Adults Social Care, Commissioners and wider 
Council partners in Housing, Localities 

 

  

P
age 18



5 
 

Priority 1 - Giving Children and Young People the Best Start in Life 

Why is change needed?  
 
In Gateshead we want to enable children and young people to have the best possible start in life. Our key priority areas for Gateshead are 
Special Educational Needs & Disabilities (SEND), CYP Mental Health, and Maternity/First 1001 days. 
 
 
Our vision is for all children with SEND to thrive, have appropriate provision, feel positive about their next steps and believe in themselves.  We put families 
at the heart of everything we do. As set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, we will: 
 

• Focus our effort on supporting confident, positive and resilient parenting to those who need to the most support.  
• Build the resilience and wellbeing of all children and young people 
• Make sure maternity and children services are of high quality and meet the needs of all groups 
• Support Gateshead to be a child friendly place 
• Work together across the system to create the conditions for good emotional health and wellbeing, including action in settings such as school and 

opportunities for volunteering 
• Ensure that the views and opinions of children, young people and their families are represented in all aspects of our work 

 
We've made considerable progress in Gateshead in relation to SEND, some examples of improvements and good practice and planned activity includes: 

• Providing training to upskill professionals across Education Health and Social care on their roles and responsibilities of the SEND agenda 
• Developing a Joint Commissioning and SEND Strategy  
• Continue to increase uptake of learning disability annual health checks 14- 25 
• Continue to promote communication of services they can access and celebrate inclusivity in the region.   
• Key outputs to date have included increased participation of C&YP and their parents and carers in influencing the development of services to 

support their needs. Strong relationships have been built across the Health, Education and Social Care. 
• Work with Nexus to purchase full travel passes for 126 care experienced young people in Gateshead. Robust evaluation will take place over the 

next year to monitor the impact having the travel pass has had on the life of each young person e.g. attending health appointments, socialising, 
emotional mental health & wellbeing. 

• Development of a Teenage Resource –'The Little Book of Useful Stuff' is based on the principles of 'The Little Orange Book' (but for teenagers). 
The book will be launched in quarter 1 of 2023 and engagement and evaluation will take place during the financial year.  In addition to this resource 
development of a SEND Easy Read Version will be undertaken, the resource will be hosted on the Healthier Together Website. 

 
 

P
age 19



6 
 

For the SALT service there is now a recovery plan in place and there are some interim measures in place to upskill Higher Level Teaching assistants to 
support children and young people with speech and communication needs to help us fulfil our ambition in ensuring needs are met at an earlier stage and 
for the vast majority of children and young people avoiding the need for specialist level intervention. 
 
There has been a number of projects underway in Gateshead to improve the offer of support for children and young people's mental health to try and 
address some of the challenges in relation to access as well as taking a more preventative community centric approach.  A number of successful initiatives 
have taken place over the last 12 months to support this approach, an example being a community grants scheme which is supporting teenagers at risk of 
suicide and a sex education programme for young people with a learning disability. 
 
To support a joined-up approach and bring support closer to our communities we are part of the project group for the newly introduced Family Hubs and 
are also working closely with Locality Teams to transform how we support our young people.  An example of this is the development of 5 autism hubs 
across the borough to work within the hubs.  We are also progressing co-location of Psychological Wellbeing Practitioners and Cognitive Behavioural 
Therapists also being part of the hubs. 
 

For every new parent, having a baby should be a joyful experience that brings families closer together. The truth is, even for those living in relative comfort 
and surrounded by a loving family, the arrival of a new baby is usually exhausting and can be overwhelming. Ensuring our families have support for early 
years healthy development (1,001 critical days) is a system wide transformation project. The developments are to ensure Gateshead has seamless support 
for families, welcoming family hubs with accessible information, an empowered workforce and committed leadership. In Maternity services, Gateshead is 
committed to ensure all women have personalised and safe care (further detail can be found the maternity thematic plan). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20



7 
 

Objectives – 
Objective 1 Improve inclusion and participation of CYP in their communities with a particular focus on the SEND population 

Objective 2 Improve Children and Young Peoples Mental Health 

Objective 3 Address waits for SALT as well improving the offer for CYP and their families through upskilling the workforce and developing a joint 
approach for community-based support which is an integrated offer as part of the Family Hub development 

Objective 4  Develop an integrated offer for pre and post diagnostic support 

 
Goals – 
 Description of Goal: What is being 

measured? If possible include the data 
source. 

Where are you 
now? Baseline, 
with a date. 

What is the 
target? Number or 
percentage 

When do you aim 
to get there? A 
date 

Goal 1 System Engagement Plan in place with SMART 
targets 

0 1 End March 2024 

Goal 2 Improve access target for CYP MH Services 6985 contacts 7000 
(Newcastle/Gateshead) 

End Qtr 4 2024 
Newcastle/Gateshead 
figures to be 
disaggregated. 

Goal 3 Wait no longer than 18 weeks to treatment for 
SALT – KPI data 

Baseline to be 
determined 
 

To be determined End March 2026 

Goal 4  Establish 5 commissioned autism hubs across the 
borough 

1 5 September 2023 

 
 
 

P
age 21



8 
 

 
Initiatives – Key deliverables.  
 
 23/24 24/25 25/26 27/28 28/29 

Item Deliverable description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

1 Conduct and evaluate a pilot focused on new mothers via the vulnerable parent 
pathway and the Family Nurse Partnership to promote confidence, and help to 
build self-esteem, and address the anxiety and fear felt by many pregnant woman 
and parents. Evaluation by the Local Clinical Research Network  
 

   X     

2 Work with the Local Authority and system partners on the development of family 
hubs with a focus on improving support for new and expectant mothers 
 

   X     

3 Undertake a review of the Single Point of Access for CYP mental health services 
'Getting Help' service which has been in operation since 2019, with an aim to 
evaluate the model and increase accessibility 

  X      

4 Embed Trauma Informed Practice through the newly established ‘Trusting Hands’ 
Team 

    X    

5 Review the crisis pathway for children and young people and codesign the 
pathway and alternative to crisis offer with our Gateshead children and young 
people 

   X     

6 Review and improve the offer for Mental Health Support Teams in Schools  
 

   X     

7 Development and roll out of ‘The Little Book of Useful Stuff’ – a codesigned health 
and wellbeing resource for teenagers 
 

  X      

8 Deliver Masterclasses for health and education professionals in relation to 
Children and Young People's Asthma, Allergies, Diabetes and Epilepsy 
 

   X     

9 Design and deliver GP Kite Mark to improve accessibility for CYP 
 

   X     

 

P
age 22



9 
 

Priority 2 – Better Health & Care Services – developing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams in line with Next steps for 
integrating primary care: Fuller Stocktake report (2022) recommendations 

Why is change needed?  
 
 
At the heart of the Fuller Stocktake report is a new vision for integrating primary care, improving the access, experience and outcomes for communities.  
Some great work has taken place to date which is in line with this vision and that of the NHS Long Term Plan through the Gateshead Carers Priorities, our 
work with Public Health to tackle the stubborn health inequalities that exist across Gateshead and through our PCN development work. 
 
In Gateshead we want to use the recommendations of the Fuller Stocktake to build on all of the positive work going on and deliver the vision of Integrated 
Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) in Gateshead bringing together previously siloed teams and professionals to do things differently to improve patient care for 
whole populations and improving access and experience of people who use services.  This will be achieved by providing more streamlined and responsive 
support based on principles of personalised care, through the development of MDT's, working with wider system partners and building on the great work 
already going on in Gateshead. 
 
We will need to embed the primary care workforce as an integral part of system thinking planning and delivery.  The development of training, supervision, 
recruitment and retention, and increased participation of the workforce is key, which includes GP's. We plan to review the GP performers list to enable 
other appropriately qualified clinicians to contribute more easily as part of the primary care workforce. 
 
We recognise the importance of collective system leadership across our organisations in taking forward our priority areas and our ambition for integration. 
We also understand the need to continue to develop our local system and ways of working so that it is best placed to deliver our aspirations for local 
people. This is something we are taking forward in parallel with our work programmes. 
 
Our work programme areas and enablers for integration each have their own SRO for the Gateshead system, supporting a distributed leadership approach. 
Gateshead system is supported by a managerial and clinical workforce, and in Gateshead Place the ICB have appointed clinical leads to provide system 
leadership to work with senior clinical and managerial leaders from across health and social care to consider how resources can best be used to achieve 
shared ambitions and strategic priorities.  The Gateshead leads are: 
 

• Dr Mark Dornan – Partnership / Primary care/IFR 
• Dr Georgina Butler – Ageing well / Living well 
• Dr Sangeetha Bommisetty – Mental Health, Learning Disabilities, Autism and Children & Young People. 

  
We feel this will provide the linkup between our programmes of work such as communities and complex care, urgent and emergency care, long-term 
condition prevention, early intervention, and support our primary care improvement and development of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 23



10 
 

There are also a number of transformation programmes and initiatives already underway in Gateshead which we can build on, as well as provide us with 
the opportunity to co-locate, avoid duplication and inefficiencies in the system and utilise the Better Care Fund as an enabler where appropriate. 
 
However, Primary care does not work in isolation; joined up community health services play a vital role in meeting people's needs in the community, often 
working in partnership with social care, community services, secondary care and the VCSE sector.   
 
As a system there is also a commitment to look at how a shift to prevention and community based healthcare and support secondary care with the 
challenges they face in Gateshead, but also start to think about how we begin to make real headway in a shift to prevention over the next 5 years by 
shifting care upstream to prevent the levels of ill health our population experiences, to provide integrated and proactive care whereby a person's health and 
wellbeing is supported at a much earlier stage and more effectively.  The approaches are crucial to reducing the need for high-cost acute care and 
achieving better outcomes for the people of Gateshead. Models already in operation such as an Integrated Discharge Hub, Discharge to Assess, Virtual 
Wards, UTC's and crisis response services also play a vital part in any integrated offer, as well as an increased focus on housing and digitally enabled care 
and remote monitoring 
 
Our overall ambition in Gateshead, through the development of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams is: 
 
• To tackle persistent health inequalities across the borough; community resources, people, carers and those parts of the workforce that are closer to 

communities such as our Social Prescribers and Health & Wellbeing Coaches. 
• Develop an improved offer to provide more effective support to our children and young people, autistic people and those with a learning disability by 

adapting our traditional models of support to ensure services are accessible and meet their support needs. 
• Address gaps in provision through a community development approach, building on existing assets, and through joined up work with the local authority 

and system partners. 

 
  

P
age 24



11 
 

 
Objectives –  
 
Objective 1 To develop a single system-wide approach to managing integrated urgent care to guarantee same-day care for patients and a more 

sustainable model for practices and providing people with more choice about how they access care and support to ensure patients 
have good experience of access to services and there is equity for all. 

Objective 2 To assist systems with integration of primary and urgent care access, specifically looking at the role of NHS 111, and improving 
access to pharmacy, dentistry, optometry, and audiology. 
 

Objective 3 Enable all PCNs to evolve into integrated neighbourhood teams (recognising that this may look different in each area) by building on 
already existing models such as Discharge to Assess, UTC's, Mental Health Crisis response and the new Community Diagnostic 
Centre and through the development of co-located Multi-Disciplinary Teams (MDT's) leading to improved patient journeys, joined up 
systems and patient centred personalised care. 
 

Objective 4  Work alongside local people and communities in the planning and implementation process of the actions set out above, ensuring that 
these plans are appropriately tailored to local needs and preferences, including that of our children and young people; people with a 
learning disability; autistic people; and demographic and cultural factors which build on the positive work already underway with 
HAREF, Labriut, Connected Voice and Jewish Community Council. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



12 
 

Goals  
 
 Description of 

Goal    
What is being 
measured?   

Where are you 
now? 

What is the 
target? 

When do you aim 
to get there? 

Goal 1 Expand direct access 
and self-referrals 

Falls response 
Musculoskeletal 
Services 
Audiology 
Weight Management 
Community Podiatry 
Wheelchair and 
community equipment 
services 

Baseline assessment 
to be completed 
 

Direct access and 
specialist referrals for 
all listed 

End 2024/5 

Goal 2 Meet 2 hr urgent 
community response 

Response times 70% Above 70% Maintain standard 

Goal 3 Recovery Plan and 
targets in place for 
UEC 

Bed occupancy 
Trolley breaches 

To be determined To be determined Target dates to be set 
as part of recovery plan 

Goal 4  Meet faster diagnosis 
standard for Cancer 

Cancer diagnosis times 62 day waits across all 
specialities 

75% within 28 days To be determined 

Goal 5 Delivery Plan for 
Recovering Access to 
Primary Care 

Robust recovery plan in 
place 

To be determined when 
PCN capacity and 
access plans are 
submitted 

As previous Plan in place for each 
PCN by 30 June 

 
  

P
age 26



13 
 

 
Initiatives – Key deliverables.  
 
 23/24 24/25 25/26 27/28 28/29 

Item Deliverable description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

1 Monitor the Network DES requirements and review the PCN Maturity Matrix  X       

2 Evaluate current initiatives and models and develop proposals for 
expansion/development of pharmacy, dentistry, optometry and audiology 

   X     

3 Work with Trusts and partners to improve data collection and reporting especially 
in relation to workforce and population data to ensure greater efficiency and 
targeting of resources. 

   X     

4 Develop a data sharing agreement across anchor organisations and relevant 
partners to enable updates to patient records and real time viewing (adopt national 
template if available) 

   X     

5 Appraisal of UTC's and wider UEC model across Gateshead linking in CMHT to 
explore opportunities to develop a single system-wide approach to managing 
integrated urgent care to guarantee same-day care for patients and a more 
sustainable model for practices 

   X     

6 Identify opportunities to streamline services and improve access, including e-
consult, self-service options, user friendly information and processes 
 

  X      

7 To build on the virtual wards offer in Gateshead to deliver on from the national and 
local priorities around discharge and hospital avoidance and system resilience 

  X      

8 Service development and improvement of Community Health Services    X X    

9 Promote the UCR service with all people across the Gateshead system including 
primary and secondary care 

  X      

10 Review Older Peoples MH Crisis Pathway and develop recommendations to improve the 
offer across Gateshead  

  X      

 

  

P
age 27



14 
 

 

Priority 3 - Fairer Outcomes for All  
 

Why is change needed?  
 
The Health & Wellbeing Strategy, JSNA and Director of Public Health annual reports share the following health inequalities data and information, 
highlighting the need to pursue a strategic system wide approach to tackle continuing inequalities: 
 

• Overall, Gateshead is the 47th most deprived local authority in England, out of 317 local authorities. Around 32,700 (16%) people in Gateshead 
live in one of the 10% most deprived areas of England. Extending that range further, nearly 62,600 (31%) live in the 20% most deprived areas 

• The population is ageing, it is projected that by 2043 there will be an additional 12,316 people aged 65 or older, an increase of 29%  
• Even before Covid, around 30% of children in the UK were living in poverty, which is an enormous source of stress for families 
• 73.3% of adults in Gateshead have excess weight according to survey data. This is significantly worse than the England average of 63.5% 
• In the year to April 2021 there were nearly 1,030 opiate users and over 360 non-opiate users in treatment. 

 
No one agency can tackle inequalities alone.  Gateshead Cares provides the platform to bring our collective strengths and resources into one place and 
focus them on improving the health, wealth and wellbeing of everyone, setting out the biggest opportunities to improve the health of Gateshead residents, 
focussing on the wider determinants of health, and taking action through local empowerment and leadership. 
 
Through this plan we want to build on the positive work working on across Gateshead and deliver on the ICB Integrated Care Strategy and wider NHS LTP 
ambitions.  We are fortunate in Gateshead to have support from our Health & Wellbeing Board and Director of Public Health who are fully invested in the 
ambitions of the ICB in relation to inequalities through the ICB Healthier and Fairer Committee and our Health and Wellbeing Board as Chair of the ICP 
North Area Partnership Meeting. 
 
In Gateshead we want to build a culture of learning and improvement to support equitable decision making to reduce health inequalities across the wider 
determinants of health.  This will be supported through Northumbria University Centre for Health and Social Equity (CHASE) and the Health Determinants 
Research Collaboration which is a 5 year research infrastructure project to develop research capability, capacity and culture in Gateshead. 
 
The Director of Public Health has a £5million grant for the next 5 years to support research and innovation across Gateshead. 

 

P
age 28



15 
 

Objectives  
 
Objective 1 Reducing the harms from alcohol, substance misuse and smoking across Gateshead 

Objective 2 Promoting healthy weight and active lives to achieve an overall reduction in those people who are clinically obese and over. 
 

Objective 3 Improve the experience of people when waiting for planned operations. 
 

Objective 4 To work towards achieving the Core20Plus5 targets for adults and children over the next 5 years & fully participate in Deep End 
Network (Chopwell) 
 
 
 

 
Goals  
 Description of 

Goal    
What is being 
measured?   

Where are you 
now? 

What is the 
target? 

When do you aim 
to get there? 

Goal 1 Reduce smoking 
prevalence by 5% 

Prevalence data Baseline to be 
determined 

5% Reduction 2030 

Goal 2 Increase access to weight 
management services 

Access targets Baseline to be 
determined 

To be determined To be determined 

Goal 3 Sustain national targets 
for SMI Health Checks 

No of checks taken place 60% 60% 2023/4 with figures 
sustained or exceeded 
annually 

Goal 4  Achieve Core20 Plus% 
targets for adults and 
children 

Please refer to Table 
below 

Current baseline to be 
established for all areas 

Align with national 
targets set out below 

 

 
 
 

P
age 29



16 
 

Core20plus5 five clinical areas of focus: ADULTS 

1.Maternity: ensuring continuity of care for 75% of women from Black, Asian and minority ethnic communities and from the most deprived groups. 

2. Severe mental illness (SMI): ensuring annual health checks for 60% of those living with SMI (bringing SMI in line with the success seen in learning disabilities). 

3. Chronic respiratory disease: a clear focus on Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) driving up uptake of Covid-19, flu and pneumonia vaccines to 
reduce infective exacerbations and emergency hospital admissions due to those exacerbations.  
 
4. Early cancer diagnosis: 75% of cases diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 by 2028. 
 
5. Hypertension case-finding and optimal management and lipid optimal management: to allow for interventions to optimise blood pressure and minimise the risk 
of myocardial infarction and stroke. 
 
Core20Plus5 for children and young people  

Asthma: Addressing over reliance on reliever medications and decreasing the number of asthma attacks. 

Diabetes: Increasing access to real-time continuous glucose monitors and insulin pumps across the most deprived quintiles and from ethnic minority backgrounds; 
as well as increasing the proportion of those with Type 2 diabetes receiving recommended NICE care processes. 

Epilepsy: Increasing access to epilepsy specialist nurses and ensure access in the first year of care for those with a learning disability or autism.  

Oral health: Tooth extractions due to decay for children admitted as inpatients in hospital, aged 10 years and under. 

 

 
  

P
age 30



17 
 

 
Initiatives – Key deliverables.  
 
 23/24 24/25 25/26 27/28 28/29 

Item Deliverable description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

1 Progress the recommendations from the Dame Carole Black Review on 
substance misuse harms utilising the Supplementary Substance Misuse 
Treatment and Recovery Grant (SSMTRG) with proposals for use agreed by the 
Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID).  

 

    X    

2 Development of a Health Inequalities team based at QE hospital and working with 
those identified with multiple and complex needs to access health services back in 
the community.  This work complements and is aligned to developments funded 
via the Supplementary Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant 
(SSMTRG). 

 

    X    

3 Strengthen the links between community and secondary care for both drugs and 
alcohol through Community Recovery Coordinator and Nurse posts working into 
the hospital to ensure interventions to support vulnerable dependant drinkers are 
robust. 

 

    X    

4 Undertake a needs assessment of services including linking the 
LA/Community/ICB obesity strategies 
 

    X    

5 Support Implementation of Gateshead’s Physical Activity Strategy 
 

    X    

6 Develop options for provision of tier 1, 2 and 3 obesity services  
 

   X     

7 Support implementation of the Active Travel Social Prescribing Pilot, sharing and 
considering learning from this work across the system. 
 

    X    

8 Conduct an analysis of early age obesity issues that are linked with BAME 
diabetic activity and produce an action plan. 

   X     

P
age 31



18 
 

9 Work with PCNs to implement Health Inequality Leads     X    

10 Implement learning from review of targeted work on hard to reach groups to 
maintain 60% target of SMI Healthchecks  

   X     

11 Provide additional investment targeted at vaccine inequalities which is being 
coordinated in partnership with the Public Health Team 

   X     

12 Roll out PCN/School pilot for asthma and allergy review    X     

13 Roll out training to staff supported by The Beat Asthma Bundle of Care package 
 

   X     

14 Disseminate learning from the Deep End Network pilot at Chopwell Primary 
Healthcare Centre and use findings to inform 24/25 activity. 

   X     

15 Increase Early Cancer diagnosis to 75% diagnosed at Stage 1 or 2 by 2028.        X 

16 Promote early intervention and prevention of asthma and allergies and respiratory 
illness in conjunction with Local Authority Housing Team through a Health Pilot 
focussed on increasing identification of damp and mould in Council housing, social 
housing and private lets. 

   X     

17 Develop proposal for an Epilepsy Nurse in Gateshead with a view to being 
operational by Autumn 2023 

X        

 

  

P
age 32



19 
 

Priority 4  - Longer and Healthier Lives – Mental Health, Learning Disability, Autism, Ageing Well 
 

Why is change needed?  
 
Mental Health –  
 
Currently many of the teams working across pathways, work in silos, the transformation is looking to improve pathways and join up referral routes. The 
patient experience is often being passed from service to service or then criteria/eligibility makes accessing support difficult.  
 
Particular areas of focus in Gateshead to improve the offer and address gaps in service include understanding how people can be supported better to 
prevent people ending up in crisis by looking at how existing support is being offered and create an alternative to crisis offer that will enable people to 
access support in a timely way, in places and spaces that are accessible, reducing the need to attend A&E or Crisis services. 

The dementia pathway requires review and redesign to enable people and their families/carers with Dementia to live safely and with the appropriate 
support at home. We have mapped current services, which will enable us to develop an appropriate pathway for Dementia from hospital 
admission/discharge to living at home in the community.  

It is envisaged that through the expansion of the mental health workforce, together with improved networks will support people and professionals in the 
system to make meaningful connections, taking away the need for multiple appointments, prolonged waiting times and being referred from service to 
service. With system partners working together and understanding from the person how they can be best supported, we will aim to give better long-term 
outcomes preventing the need to access services and connect people to their local communities, improve the crisis offer and develop non-clinical 
approaches to support people to have good mental health and wellbeing. 
 
Learning Disability and Autism –  
 
The Gateshead Learning Disability & Autism three-year plan outlines aims to progress work across four priority areas: Pre & Post Diagnosis Support, 
Health Inequalities, Communication & Engagement and Workforce. The Pre and Post Diagnosis Support agenda will improve and expand services for 
autistic adults, children and young people, and their parents and carers. At a strategic level, this work seeks also to improve collaborative working, 
streamline communication between services and upskill the workforce to ensure patients experience a consistent approach across the life span. We want 
an offer of support to be available across the borough which works alongside locality partners and integrated neighbourhood teams to build on the great 
work that has already been done to address gaps in provision and access to services and good quality affordable housing that meets the needs of some of 
our most vulnerable people in Gateshead.  Our aim is to: 
 

• Continue to improve the accuracy and increase size of GP Learning Disability registers.  
• Develop integrated, workforce plans for the learning disability and autism workforce to support delivery of the objectives set out in this guidance.  
• Test and implement improvement in autism diagnostic assessment pathways including actions to reduce waiting times. 

P
age 33



20 
 

• Improve the training offer for people who support and provide services for people with a learning disability and/or Autism – ensuring that people 
have an understanding and awareness of the needs for this population. 

• Ensure that system partners offer timely support and access to service, linked to education, housing and relationships. 
• Working in integrated pathways with adults with multiple and complex needs, Learning Disability and/or Autism and Mental Health needs, to avoid 

admissions to care settings and hospitals, support people to be more independent, have access to training and employment opportunities and live 
thriving lives.   

• Improve access to services for pre and post diagnosis for people waiting for a diagnosis and connect with individuals that may not be aware or 
understand how services can be accessed.  

• Ensure that the voice of people is include in the development of services through an independent organisation 
 
Ageing Well – 
 
The Gateshead system is linked with the ICB Ageing Well workstream of which we are active participants, and which supports us to locally deliver the best 
outcomes for patients and service users.  

Throughout he pandemic the Gateshead system has risen to many of the challenges that Covid presented to an already fragile home care market. By 
coming together as a system during that time it accelerated the delivery of more effective integrated ways of working across adult social care and health to 
avoid hospital admission and facilitate discharge through the PRIME service and Rapid Response Teams, as well as provide a service to end of life 
patients through Hospice at Home. 

The aim of this plan is to build on the good relationships and system already operating in Gateshead, as well as address a still present over reliance on 
residential care and enduring market sustainability and workforce issues that are prevalent across the sector.  There are significant challenges in the care 
home and home care sector in Gateshead, particularly in the recruitment and retention of the workforce and attracting people with the right skills and ability 
due to low rates of pay and often lack of career opportunities and due the rurality of some of our communities. 

In addition, there is a fragmented Older Persons pathway in Gateshead, especially for those people with dementia; more can be done to make 
improvements to the pathway through increased community investment to enable people to stay at home for longer and avoid often unnecessary 
admission to hospital and long-term residential care. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 34



21 
 

 
Objectives  
 
Objective 1 Improve the community mental health offer across Gateshead for adults and older people. 

Objective 2 Improve the experiences of people with a learning disability and autism in managing their health and improving the support to live 
independently in the community, reduce reliance on residential care and the length of inpatients stays 

Objective 3 Develop a new and improved integrated offer for residential care across the borough, which includes older people, working age adults 
and specialist services. 

Objective 4 Develop an improved and sustainable integrated offer for homecare which supports better outcomes for our older people in 
Gateshead and system flow by enabling safe and timely discharge and progress with a ‘home first’ approach  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



22 
 

Goals  
 
 Description of 

Goal    
What is being 
measured?   

Where are you 
now? 

What is the 
target? 

When do you aim 
to get there? 

Goal 1 Improve access to core 
community mental 
health services for 
adults and older adults 
for SMI 

Access rates 4745 as end of Qtr 3 
22/23 

5000 for 
Newcastle/Gateshead 

End Qtr 4 2023/4 

Goal 2 Increase IAPT Access 
Target 

Access rates  15% 1836 (25% target) End 2024/5 

Goal 3 Monitor the recovery of 
Gateshead's dementia 
diagnosis rate to 
ensure it remains at 
66.7% or above 

Diagnosis 77% Above 66.7% 2023/4.  Future years 
will align with national 
targets 

Goal 4  Improve access to 
perinatal mental health 
services (8.6% target in 
23/24 

Access rates 350 as of end Qtr 3 
2022/3 

803 contacts 
Newcastle/Gateshead 

End Qtr 4 2023/4 

Goal 5 People aged over 14 
on GP learning 
disability registers 
receive an annual 
health check and 
health action plan 

Number of people 
receiving a health 
check  

84% 75% 2023/4.  Future years 
will align with national 
targets. 

Goal 6 An increase in the 
number of older people 
(65+) being supported 

New measure Baseline to be 
established 

To be established End 2023/4 

P
age 36



23 
 

at home after 10 weeks 
from being discharged 
from hospital who were 
on a Pathway 1 or 2 
service 

 
Goal 7 A reduction in the 

number of falls which 
leads to emergency 
hospital admissions 

 
 

New Measure as part 
of BCF metrics 

Baseline to be 
established 

To be established End 2023/4 

 
  

P
age 37



24 
 

Initiatives – Key deliverables 
 
 23/24 24/25 25/26 27/28 28/29 

Item Deliverable description Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

1 Develop integrated, workforce plans for the learning disability and autism 
workforce to support delivery of the objectives  

   X     

2 Expansion of IAPT across Gateshead which includes greater alignment with PCNs 
and physical health. 

    X    

3 Review and redesign of older persons MH pathway to: 
• reduce reliance on inpatient beds and more support in the community 

ensure dementia diagnosis rate remains at 66.7% 

    X    

4 Pilot non-clinical alternatives to supporting peoples mental health through a 
community grant scheme to: 

• test out ideas and build an evidence base of what works 
• build community capacity at a neighbourhood level 

inform future CMHT investment 

   X     

5 Scope development of a step up/down service in Gateshead for people with a 
learning disability or who are autistic to avoid inappropriate hospital admission and 
improve patient outcomes. 

   X     

6 Maintain uptake of Annual Learning Disability Health Checks 
 

   X X X X X 

7 Improve the offer of pre and post diagnostic support for autistic people and their 
families/carers through the commissioning of an autism hub in Gateshead 
 

   X     

8 Improve access to Alternative to Crisis services which includes provision of crisis 
safe haven space for individuals in crisis but who do not require immediate clinical 
input  

   X     

9 A Hospital Discharge Service for Gateshead needs to be agreed for the next two 
financial years based on the resources available 

    X    

10 Develop and procure a new Home Care model for Gateshead in conjunction with 
the Local Authority and system partners 

   X     

11 Improve recruitment and retention of the Health & Social Care Workforce through 
development of workforce hub  
 

   X     

P
age 38



25 
 

12 New Promoting Independence Centre in the Autumn 2023 to replace the existing 
2 small homes.    

   X     

13 Development of overnight community support service to support people with both 
planned and unplanned overnight needs for those with long-term needs.   

    X    

14 Develop and procure a joint Health & Social Care Residential & Nursing Care 
Contracts for Adults. 

    X    

15 The EHCH DES & our local DES Plus will support a reduction in admissions into 
hospital for people in permanent long-term residential/nursing care through 
ensuring proactive support from Primary Care and Community Nurses 

   X     

 

  

P
age 39



26 
 

Enablers – what do you need in place in order for you to deliver your plan  
 

1. Process – operational models that will require change as a result of this plan being delivered 
System leadership and development 
 

2. Workforce 
Develop workforce hub in Gateshead with agreed key deliverables and milestones taking into account ARRS and expansion plans as part of 
Transformation programmes 

Workforce Initiatives to improve recruitment and retention of the Health & Social Care Workforce.   This includes; 
A Health & Social Care Academy 
B apprenticeship development,  
C Step into Work Programme, improving work experience placements opportunities across health and social care, and using placement hours from skilled 
staff in services that need additional support. 
 

3. Research and Innovation 
University Research and evaluation for key projects and pilot programmes to support innovation, decision making and future investment based on 
improved outcomes for people. 

Support from Northumbria University Centre for Health & Social Equity (CHASE) 

Instability of housing research for autistic individuals and those with a learning disability due to be released  

4. Digital technology and Data 
Complete AXYM project 
Work with Trusts and partners to improve data collection and reporting especially in relation to workforce and population data to ensure greater efficiency 
and targeting of resources. Interoperability issues resolved 
Improved digital telephony and simpler online requests as part of the Modern General Practice Access approach. 

5. Estates. 
Build on the work of the Primary Care Estates Group through a refreshed action plan to support a 'one public estate' approach 
 

6. Finance 
Coordination of funding streams and criteria to maximise flexibility in order to achieve key objectives 
Greater flexibility re capital investment 

P
age 40



27 
 

 
 
Risks – Please summarise the key risks specific to your action plan, and how these might be mitigated. 
 
Risks Mitigations 
Workforce 
Unable to retain and recruit sufficient staff and volunteers to meet the needs 
of local people, leading to people receiving sub-optimal care. 
 

Development of Workforce hub to support recruitment, retention and staff 
wellbeing. 

Demand 
Levels of complexity of health and care demand are materially increased 
beyond historic / trend levels due to impact of cost of living, delayed impact 
of Covid, increased flu and covid such that they can not be appropriately 
met. Services required to shift resources to reactive pressures at the 
expense of proactive preventative work. 
 

Build community capacity through community grants 
Recovery Plan for UEC 
Proactive vaccination plan 
Agreed plan with Gateshead Cares and Health & Wellbeing Board and 
commitment from Trusts to focus on community-based solutions. 
Delivery Plan for Recovering Access to Primary Care 

Economic Pressure 
Economic pressure and short-term funding of public services leads to a 
reduction in available resource in one or more partner organisation, which 
causes reduced service provision or cost shifting that impacts on care 
provision and / or partner commitment to Gateshead Cares 

Agreed BCF Plan 
Partnership approach to grants and non-recurrent funding e.g. Discharge 
grant 
 

Governance and Engagement  
The ICB imposes a model of governance or different priority expectation on 
Gateshead Cares that reduces partner engagement in the partnership and 
work programme 

New governance arrangements in place.  
Commitment from Gateshead partners to work towards becoming a Joint 
Committee 

Leadership and Commitment 
With staff turnover and new senior staff in post there is reduced belief in, 
and commitment to, Gateshead Cares such that programmes of work don’t 
progress with pace and energy and the partnership falls by the wayside 

Informal Senior Leads meeting re-established to build relationships across 
system partners 
Health & Wellbeing Board in support integration and aligning priorities 
across the system 

Resistance to Change 
Historic behaviours and cultures are so deeply embedded that we are 
unable to change / transform models of care / working and this reduced 
partners commitment  

Clear communication and engagement plan which is shared across 
organisations. 
Development of system wide induction and training to support a single 
workforce culture regardless of contract of employment. 
 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Mental Health, Learning 
Disability & Autism 
June 2023 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



2023/24 Priorities  

Continued Integration of teams at primary care level – particularly linking up mental health 
transformation with Integrated Neighbourhood Working 

Development of the Older Adults Mental Health Pathway 

Procurement of MH Rehabilitation Offer for individuals with Complex Needs

Development of an Alternative to Crisis Offer 

Focus on Children & Young People’s Mental Health Pathways – Single Point of Access  

Learning Disability & Autism 

P
age 44



Workforce Integration at Primary 
Care Level 

7 PCN Mental Health Practitioners 

5 Mental Health Community Development Workers

10 Peer Support Workers

5 Children & Young People Trainee MH Practitioners 

2 Children & Young People CBT Therapist’s 

CBC Extended Access Mental Health Practitioner Pilot 

2 Children & Young People Mental Health Practitioners 

Clinical Team Manager & Admin 

P
age 45



System Integration 

Increasing engagement of the VCSE Sector 

Embedding Mental Health into Locality Working – starting in South Gateshead 

Embedding Mental Health into Family Hubs development 

Working collectively to embed mental health support into Autism Hubs and pre & post 
diagnostic support 

Anti-Social Behaviour Pilot with Housing 

Developing Opportunities for Co-Location of Teams & Services across the Borough P
age 46



Older Adults Pathway 

Review of Older Adults Mental Health Services in Gateshead 

Specific work on Dementia Pathway which will lead to the development of a Dementia Strategy 
for Gateshead 

Review of current Mental Health Rehabilitation Residential Beds Offer from Everyturn Mental 
Health 

Joint review of older adult’s residential care contracts 

Review of older adult’s crisis pathway 

P
age 47



Children & Young People’s Mental 
Health 

Review of the Single Point of Access 

Prevention training pilot for Schools – Stormbreak  

Review of the Mental Health in Schools Team to join up with system delivery 

South Tyneside & Sunderland NHS Trust Primary Care CYP Mental Health Team 

P
age 48



Alternative to Crisis Pathway  

Alternative to Admission Pilot

Children & young people post crisis support with North East Counselling Service – Pilot extended 
until September 2023 

Co-design work with children & young people to be undertaken to help create Alternative to Crisis 
offers 

Investment into community spaces to help create safe haven spaces 

Deep Dive review to understand the reasons why individuals are experiencing a mental health 
crisis – social determinants are a key driver 

Investment to create a system training offer which is being co-designed with partners 

P
age 49



Complex Emotional Needs 

Joint work with People @ The Heart

Trauma Informed Training 

Investment into Dual Diagnosis Peer Support Workers to join up recovery and mental health 
services  

South Tyneside & Sunderland NHS Trust Primary Care Mental Health Team 

P
age 50



Learning Disability & Autism 

3 Year NHS Learning Disability & Autism Plan - Supported by system action plan  

Insights Network – Independent organisation working with system partners, autistic people and 
individuals with a learning disability  

Peer Research – Informing system partners through people’s lived experience 

5 Autism Hubs to deliver pre & post diagnostic support 

Community grants – supporting community based provision 

P
age 51



Angela Kumar, Portfolio Lead Mental Health, Learning 
Disability & Autism angela.kumar@nhs.net

Gail Ballance, Project Manager Mental Health, Learning 
Disability & Autism Portfolio gail.ballance1@nhs.net

P
age 52

mailto:angela.kumar@nhs.net
mailto:gail.ballance1@nhs.net


An overview of Early Intervention and Prevention
policing to reduce crime, demand and build trust and 
confidence in our communities.

Claire Wheatley, Superintendent.P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



PCC Police and Crime Plan

• Fighting Crime
• Preventing Crime
• Improving Lives

Northumbria Police 

• Purpose - Keep people save and fight crime
• Vision - Deliver an outstanding police service, working with 

communities to prevent crime and disorder and protect the 
most vulnerable people from harm.

P
age 54



Strategic Harm Reduction and Communities

• Early Intervention
• Prevention
• VAWG
• Partnerships
• Community Engagement
• Race Action Plan
• Hate Crime

P
age 55



PREVENTION STRATEGY

Aim 

Few victims, fewer offences and less demand on policing, by addressing the 
causes of crime and utilising partnership problem orientated policing.

Achieve 

Cultural change, reduce harm, reduce offending through problem solving

P
age 56



• Primary Prevention
Early Intervention, design out crime officers
Health and Wellbeing boards

• Secondary Prevention
Diversionary pathways, Sign post of services, offender management
Safeguarding boards

• Tertiary Prevention

Focussed deterrence work / locality hubs, problem solving, serious Violence,  
Community Safety Partnerships

P
age 57



Early Intervention

• Identifying risks early, multi service support to improve outcomes for 
people, families and wider communities.

• Neighbourhood approach – EI mind set , data analysis re emerging 
vulnerabilities  and crime trends

• Safer streets funding – public spaces / feelings of confidence
• Prevention through Education
• YOLO

P
age 58



P
age 59



Any questions?P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Item 2.2 - HWB Action List

	5 Gateshead Place Plan - Lynn Wilson and Kirsty Sprudd
	Purpose of the Report
	1b. Gateshead Place Plan New template 26-05-23 FINAL

	6 Update on Learning Disability & Autism, and the Mental Health Transformation - Angela Kumar and Gail Balance
	Mental Health, Learning Disability & Autism 
	2023/24 Priorities  
	Workforce Integration at Primary Care Level 
	System Integration 
	Older Adults Pathway 
	Children & Young People’s Mental Health 
	Alternative to Crisis Pathway  
	Complex Emotional Needs 
	Learning Disability & Autism 
	�����������Angela Kumar, Portfolio Lead Mental Health, Learning Disability & Autism angela.kumar@nhs.net ��Gail Ballance, Project Manager Mental Health, Learning Disability & Autism Portfolio gail.ballance1@nhs.net �

	7 Prevent Update - Claire Wheatley
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8


